
Paducah Infrastructure Support Services

# Final RFP Section Final RFP Sub-

Section

Subject/Title Page Number Question DOE Response

1 - - Facility Clearance Does this requirement require a Facility Clearance? If so, will the 

Government sponsor the awardee with the Facility Clearance?

Yes, this requirement requires a Facility Clearance. . 

See Sections, K.4 INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING 

FOREIGN OWNERSHIP, CONTROL OR INFLUENCE 

INFORMATION (FOCI); K.5 E-FOCI ELECTRONIC 

PROCESSING;  L.11 (h) Facility Clearance verification 

and L.17 DEAR 952.204-73, FACILITY CLEARANCE 

(AUG 2016) for further instructions. 

2  B, G B.3, G.4 Labor Hour CLINs and 

Billing instructions

B-3, G-5 Section B instructions state that "No labor hours in addition to those 

specified in Table B.3(3) below will be allowed during those periods for 

EEOICPA and Cyber Security, Computing and IT work. These rates are 

inclusive of any overtime the Contractor chooses to allow personnel to 

work." However G.4 states that "The direct productive labor hours 

incurred during the current billing period shall be broken down into 

hours worked, names of employees who incurred the cost, and 

specific tasks associated with the billing." 

Since for billing purposes the contractor needs to report all hours 

worked (straight time or overtime) in the invoice(s) but is constrained 

by the labor hours shown in Section B.3 (b), if the annual workload 

requires more hours of work will the Government grant a process to 

increase the hours in the Labor hour CLINs?

The Government and Contractor will follow 

provisions I.129, FAR 52.243-7, "Notification Of 

Changes" and I.195 , FAR 52.243-3, " Changes - Time-

And-Materials or Labor Hours" for any proposed 

increase to the hours shown in the Labor Hour 

CLINS's after contract award.

3  C C.3.4.1.1.3 Facilities Information 

Management System

C-46 Will DOE provide specifics regarding type and level of support required 

to support this PWS requirement?

No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  The work has been 

performed as part of a firm-fixed price for the past 

four years and information is not tracked at this 

level.

4  C C.3.4.1.1.4 Five Year Site Plans (FYSP) 

or Ten Year Site Plans 

(TYSP)

C-46 Will DOE provide specifics regarding type and level of support required 

to support this PWS requirement?

No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  The work has been 

performed as part of a firm-fixed price for the past 

four years and information is not tracked at this 

level.  The most recent Five Year Site Plan deliverable 

is provided in the Documents Library on the RFP 

website.

5  C C.3.4.1.1.5 Site Sustainability Plan C-46 Will DOE provide specifics regarding type and level of support required 

to support this PWS requirement?

No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  The work has been 

performed as part of a firm-fixed price for the past 

four years and information is not tracked at this 

level.  The most recent Site Sustainability Plan 

Dashboard Report deliverable is provided in the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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6  C C.3.4.3 Maintenance of Buildings 

Structures, installed 

Equipment, and 

Furnishings

C-54 ATTACHMENT J-3: PADUCAH INFRASTRUCTURE ACCOUNTABLE 

PROPERTY LIST does not list any tools, hand tools, or shop equipment 

for use by the contractor.  Please clarify or provide a list of 

Government furnished equipment that will be provided to the 

contractor to support this O&M requirement. 

See Section C.2.5.2 Personal Property.  DOE does not 

track items at this level.  There is some of these 

types of items that may be avilable for use (if 

condition is usable).  However, the offeror should 

assume that these type of expendables are not 

available in the quantities needed to perform the 

PWS.

7  C C.3.4.3.2.7 Re-Lamping C-56 Will DOE provide specifics regarding type and level of support required 

to support this PWS requirement?

No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  A spreadsheet of work 

orders under the prior contract for FY17, FY18, and 

FY19 is posted on the Documents Library on the RFP 

website.

8  C C.3.4.3.2.12 Lighting, Traffic Control 

Devices, and Street 

Lighting

C-57 Of the approximately 700 total at the site, how many are traffic 

control devices?

Less than three.  However, lighting associated with 

assigned gates that are identified on the Section J, 

Attachment J-8.C.2.1, Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix would be the responsibilty of 

the Contrator per Section C.3.4.3.

9  C C.3.4.4.3 LEVEL I, 

Scheduled/Preventative 

Maintenance Tasks and 

Standards

C-59 Will the Government provide a current inspection report (Deliverable 

78 under the current RFP) for each of the required roads and yards, 

and historical maintenance and repair records for the same? This 

information is necessary to accurately estimate the cost for this 

service.

The latest inspection report will be included in the 

Documents Library on the RFP website. A 

spreadsheet of work orders under the prior contract 

for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.

10  C C.3.4.4.4 Paved, Gravel, and Earth 

Roads, and Yards - LEVEL 

II, Service Orders Tasks 

and Standards

C-58 How many Level II service orders are generated annually for this PWS 

area?  Are Level II service orders for this PWS area included in the 

Level II service order counts and labor hours provided in Attachment J-

8.C.3.4.2.2?

Attachment J-8.C.3.4.2.2 provides the estimated 

Level I and Level II service orders annually for the 

PWS.  A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.

11  C C.3.5.1 Custodial Services C-61 ATTACHMENT J-3: PADUCAH INFRASTRUCTURE ACCOUNTABLE 

PROPERTY LIST does not list any buffers, vacuums, and associated 

custodial equipment for use by the contractor.  Please clarify or 

provide a list of Government furnished equipment that will be 

provided to the contractor to support this O&M requirement. 

See Section C.2.5.2 Personal Property.  DOE does not 

track items at this level.  There is some of these 

types of items that may be avilable for use (if 

condition is usable).  However, the offeror should 

assume that these type of expendables are not 

available in the quantities needed to perform the 

PWS.

12  C C.3.5.2 Grounds Maintenance C-65 ATTACHMENT J-3: PADUCAH INFRASTRUCTURE ACCOUNTABLE 

PROPERTY LIST does not list any edgers, weedeaters, blowers, push 

mowers, and associated grounds maintenance equipment for use by 

the contractor.  Please clarify or provide a list of Government 

furnished equipment that will be provided to the contractor to 

support this O&M requirement. 

See Section C.2.5.2 Personal Property.  DOE does not 

track items at this level.  There is some of these 

types of items that may be avilable for use (if 

condition is usable).  However, the offeror should 

assume that these type of expendables are not 

available in the quantities needed to perform the 

PWS.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104

2



Paducah Infrastructure Support Services

13  C C.3.5.2.4.2.2 Mowing/Vegetation 

Control

C-66 The Government has not provided square footage for areas requiring 

mowing/vegetation control in Zones I, II, III, VI, and VII. The maps 

provided do not allow offerors to determine the associated square 

footage of these areas.  This data is necessary to accurately estimate 

the cost for this service.

Mowing Zone 1 - 2,235,922 sq. ft.; Mowing Zone 2 - 

9,150,273 sq. ft.; Mowing Zone 3 - 10,946,659 sq. ft., 

Mowing Zone 5 - 6,084,904 sq. ft.; Mowing Zone 6 - 

5,434,505 sq. ft.; C.3.5.5.5.7 Yards, Gravel, Storage - 

11,511,498 sq. ft. ; Mowing Zone 7a 25,554 Linear Ft; 

Mowing Zone 7b - 23,354 Linear Ft.

14  C C.3.5.2.4.2.4 Fertilizing and Liming C-70 What is the frequency for applying fertilizer and lime?  How many 

acres are treated with each application?

The Contractor determines how and when to apply 

fertilizer and lime to meet the performance work 

standards of the PWS.

15  C C.3.5.2.4.2.10 Soil Erosion Repair C-70 Is soil erosion repair accomplished via a Level II service order?  If so, is 

the workload included in the Level II service order counts and labor 

hours provided in Attachment J-8.C.3.4.2.2?

Most erosion repair falls within the Level I category.  

If the repair exceeds the limit of liabilty, then it 

would be a negotiated Level II service order.    Yes - 

the total hours in Attachment J-8.C.3.4.2.2 includes 

the average annual Level I and Level II Service Orders 

labor hours.

16  C C.3.5.2.5 Equipment C-71 Is equipment provided by the contractor covered by C.4.0 and the the 

Cost Reimbursement CLINs?  

Section C.4.2 identifies cost reimbursement items 

associated with government furnished property.

17  C C.3.5.3 Snow and Ice Prevention 

Removal

C-71 ATTACHMENT J-3: PADUCAH INFRASTRUCTURE ACCOUNTABLE 

PROPERTY LIST does not list any snow blowers, shovels, and 

associated snow removal equipment for use by the contractor.  Please 

clarify or provide a list of Government furnished equipment that will 

be provided to the contractor to support this O&M requirement. 

This type of equipment has not been purchased by 

the government in over five years since this contract 

has been under a firm-fixed price.  These items are 

considered consumables and are not tracked.  It is 

reasonable to assume that any that remain onsite 

that is the government's property has exceeded its 

usable life.  The offeror should include these types of 

items in the firm-fixed price.

18  C C.3.5.3.4 Equipment C-73 Is equipment provided by the contractor covered by C.4.0 and the cost 

covered by Cost Reimbursement CLINs?  

Section C.4.2 identifies cost reimbursement items 

associated with government furnished property.

19  C C.3.5.3.6 Level II Service Orders C-73 Is the Level II service order workload included in the Level II service 

order counts and labor hours provided in Attachment J-8.C.3.4.2.2?

Yes.

20  C C.3.5.5.4 Level II Service Orders C-78 Will the government provide an estimate of the average quantity of 

railroad ties replaced annually?  Is the Offeror responsible for 

permanent disposal of replaced railroad ties resulting from rail 

maintenance? Is there an existing disposal contract for treated wood?

The annual quantity varies.  This work has been done 

under Level II IDIQ negotiated work scopes.  When 

ties are replaced, the offeror is responsible for any 

railroad tie disposal from non-SWMU/non-

radiolgoical areas.  There is not an existing disposal 

contract for this type of waste that is provided to the 

Contractor for use.  The Contractor must procure 

disposal services for the waste under their 

responsibility.

21  C C.3.6.5.6 Contaminated Records C-83 Are record vaults staffed? If so, what are the hours of service? The vaults are staffed under the working hours 

established by the Contractor.  Section F, F.5 

identifies the normal hours of operation.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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22  C C.3.12.1.2 Requirements C-91 Depending on when the award is made, will DOE allow the 

incumbent’s Cyber Security Self-Assessment to stand until the next 

due date or will the incoming contractor be required to establish a 

new baseline? If it is required to establish a new baseline, how long 

after the contract award is made and the incoming contractor actually 

takes the responsible role will the incoming contractor have to 

complete the Cyber Security Self-Assessment?

If the Contractor chooses to blue-sheet and adopt 

the existing cyber sercurity program for a period of 

time after transition, then the cyber security self-

assessment will stand until the next due date.  

23  C C.3.12.1.2 Cyber Security, 

Computing, and IT, 

Requirements

Deliverable 106 requires offerors to submit a PPPO Cyber Integration 

Plan for all three sites, including the management of personnel in each 

site. Under C.3.12.1.1, it states that “The cyber security program for 

the PPPO Federal Office’s Lexington, Portsmouth, and Paducah 

presences are provided through a separate contract vehicle.” Can 

government clarify the boundary or difference between the PPPO’s 

cyber security program and the PPPO Cyber Integration? Can the 

government clarify how offerors will be given authority to manage 

personnel under other contracts to successfully complete Deliverable 

106?

The PPPO Federal Office's Lexington, Portsmouth, 

and Paducah programs will remain separate.  These 

are the DOE offices.  The Contractor is responsible 

for the Cyber Program for all the Prime Contractors 

at all three sites.  The Contractor will have the staff 

to manage the program that encompasses all of the 

Prime Contractors.  The Contractor will not manage 

personnel under other Contracts.  The Contractor 

will provide the program and oversight that the 

other Contractors are required to follow.

24  C C.3.12.2.13 IT Support and 

Management, Remote 

Systems

Can the government provide additional clarity on what “establish and 

maintain the capability to access and utilize all remote DOE systems or 

databases” entails? For example, is it by maintaining network 

connectivity, managing user credentials, and communicating with DOE 

system and database owners or third party software providers? 

Yes.  It is maintaining the systems in a manner that 

allows safe utilization of remote login capabilities.

25  H H.23 DOE-H-2043 ASSIGNMENT 

AND TRANSFER OF 

SUBCONTRACTS (OCT 

2014)

H-37 The RFP states: "(B) Transfer of Subcontracts. As the successor 

contractor, the Contractor agrees to accept transfer of existing 

subcontracts as determined necessary by DOE for continuity of 

operations. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to negotiate 

changes to the assigned subcontracts incorporating mandatory flow-

down provisions at no cost. If the subcontractor refuses to accept the 

changes or requests price adjustments, the Contractor will notify the 

Contracting Officer in writing. DOE reserves the right to direct the 

Contractor to transfer to DOE or another Contractor any subcontract 

awarded under this contract." Would the Government provide a list of 

existing subcontracts specific to this contract and period of 

performance dates for those subcontracts?

At this time, there are no existing subcontracts that 

are required to be transferred to the Awardee.

26  J Attachment J-11 

QASP

3. Safeguards and Security 

(C.3.3)

A-9 What is the definition of Security Enforcement Action? See 10 CFR 824.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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27  J Attachment J-11 

QASP

Table 1 through Table 20 A-1-34 The sixth column of these tables provides the Deduction (Impact on 

Contractor Payments). In instances where a percentage of applicable 

CLIN is specified, what duration amount is that percentage applied 

against? Is it the entire contract value for the CLIN for each infraction 

or is the duration of contract value related to the surveillance 

frequency? For instance with a particular CLIN that has a 10% 

deduction against a monthly surveillance, would that be the total CLIN 

value divided by the number of months for which the CLIN applies? 

The deduction is based on a percentage of the 

applicable CLIN value relative to the surveillance 

frequency (i.e. monthly, quarterly, etc.)

28 B B.3(a)

B.3(b)

Firm-Fixed-Price CLINs

Labor Hour CLINs

B-2

B-3

C.3.11 EEOICPA and C.3.12 Cyber Security, Computing, and IT are 

listed in both B.3(a) as FFP and B.3(b) as Labor Hour.  Please confirm 

that C.3.11 and C.3.12 are Labor Hour only.

C.3.11 and C.3.12 are Labor Hour only. B.3(a) will be 

amended to reflect this.

29

B  B.3 (a) and (b) Contract Pricing B-2,3,7

Section 3.11 and 3.12 are referenced under both B.3(a), Firm Fixed 

Price CLINs and B.3(b), Labor Hour CLINs. 

Question: What elements of Section 3.11 and 3.12 are included in the 

Fixed Price CLINs vs. which elements are included in the Labor Hours 

CLINs?

C.3.11 and C.3.12 are Labor Hour only. B.3(a) will be 

amended to reflect this.

30

B Section B
Supplies or Services and 

Prices/Costs
B-3

FPR and CR CLINS Worksheet, Cells D5 and E5. 

Question: Please clarify if the number and unit of measure in each 

area are correct or they should agree in number and unit of measure. 

If they should agree, which number and unit of measure is correct?

The number and unit of measure are correct. It is 

recognized that the transition period duration is 60-

days, however, transition is paid as one total lump 

sum.

31

B and C
B.3(b) and 

C.3.12.1.5

Supplies or Services and 

Prices/Costs

and

Performance Work 

Statement

B-7 and C-92

Section B.3(b) states, “The Cyber Security, Computing, and 

Information Technology personnel fixed hourly rates are fully 

burdened and include all indirect costs and profit for the work covered 

under Section C.3.12, except for the Contingency Plan Director. This 

position is a management position and should be included as part of 

the firm-fixed price associated with Section C.2.1, Administration.”

Question:  Is the Contingency Plan Director an independent position 

or can it be a dual role?  If it can be a dual role, can it be combined 

within the Fixed Labor Hour positions, if charges are appropriately 

distributed between Fixed Price and Fixed Labor Hour positions?

Section B.3(b) will be changed to the IT 

Director/Manager in an amendment.  In the event 

the Contractor chooses to have a key personnel 

position or director, this would be under the firm-

fixed price and is not the position identified as the IT 

Manager in the hourly labor categories.  In Section 

C.3.12.1.5, the cyber security-significant appointed 

roles may be filled by staff personnel and the staff 

positions do not have to correspond one-to-one with 

the role identified and are not labor categories (i.e., 

they are not full-time roles).  An individual may fulfill 

multiple roles.  

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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32 B, C Section B.2, CLIN 

0001 and C.3.1

Transition B-2 and C-25 May offeror's assume that incumbent ISS staff is available to provide 

support for Transition and if so, who bears the cost for incumbent 

support? To what extent/levels of management and operations 

support of the incumbent workforce will be made available to support 

transition? What, if any, limitations will the new contractor have with 

meeting and interviewing incumbents? Will onsite meetings with 

incumbent workforce be allowed and space allowed for meetings?

The current Infrastructure Contractor (Swift and 

Staley) is required to support transition to the 

incoming Contractor by attending transition 

meetings, providing documents, as requested, and 

providing HR information, as necessary.  The current 

Infrastructure Contractor will support transition, to 

the extent reasonable, while completing their 

routine contract requirements during transition.  

Incumbents will be allowed to attend interviews.  See 

Section C.3.1. that states that Government furnished 

facilities and equipment will not be available until 

transition is complete and the Contractor assume 

operational responsibilities.  Therefore, there will not 

be space onsite for transition meetings unless they 

are with DOE or the Incumbent Contractor wishes to 

hold meetings in their facilities at their convenience. 

33 B, C B.3, C.3.12.1.5 Labor Hour Cyber 

Security, Computing, and 

IT CLINs

B-3, C-92 The B.3 Labor Hour Cyber Security, Computing, and IT CLIN table(s) list 

12 labor categories with hours to price. In PWS section C.3.12.1.5 

there are additional 7 IT labor categories (roles) that are called out; 

Information System Security Manager, Information System Security 

Officer(s), Configuration Management Manager, Contingency Plan 

Director, Contingency Plan Coordinator, Control Assessor(s), System 

Owner. Only one of these additional labor categories (Contingency 

Plan Director) is identified to be priced in the FFP CLINs.  

Will the Government clarify if the other additional positions should 

also be priced in the FFP CLINs?  Will the Government supply a cross-

walk if some of these additional roles are associated with the 12 labor 

categories shown in the B.3 table or supply the minimum 

qualifications for these additional IT positions? Are the PWS section 

C.3.12.1.5 positions mandatory?

Section B.3(b) will be changed to the IT 

Director/Manager in an amendment.  In the event 

the Contractor chooses to have a key personnel 

position or director, this would be under the firm-

fixed price and is not the position identified as the IT 

Manager in the hourly labor categories.  In Section 

C.3.12.1.5, the cyber security-significant appointed 

roles may be filled by staff personnel and the staff 

positions do not have to correspond one-to-one with 

the role identified and are not labor categories (i.e., 

they are not full-time roles).  An individual may fulfill 

multiple roles.  

34 B, C, L Sections B.2, C.3.1, and L.16(g) all reference a 60-day transition period.  

However, Section H.3(B) defines the Contract Transition Period as 90-

days and Section H.6 outlines the transition timeframe and multiple 

deliverables being due as outlined on a 90-day transition schedule.   

Please clarify the number of days for the transition period for this 

contract.

The transition period is 60-days. References to a 90-

day transition period will be updated to 60-days in an 

amendment.

35 B, L Are the CLIN 0001, "Transition Period Cost" and CLIN 0002, "Closeout 

Cost" submitted by the Offeror part of the total evaluated price?" 

Yes.  CLINS 0001 and 0002 are considered Firm-Fixed 

Price CLINS. See M.7.

36 B, L After contract award, will labor prices proposed on an IDIQ task 

proposal need to match what was proposed in the original RFP 

proposal?

Yes. Proposed IDIQ fixed-unit rates will be 

incorporated into the resultant contract via 

Attachment J-10 (currently reserved).

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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37 B, L Section B Table 

B.3 (3) and 

Section L, L-8 TAB 

Section B Table 

B.3 (3) EEOICPA

EEOICPA DPLH Section B 

pages B-8, B-9, 

B-10, B-11, 

and B-12 and 

Section L, L-8

Section B Table B.3 (4) pages B-4, B-5, and B-6, the DPLH provided 

differ from those DPLH provided in the Section L, L-8 document TAB 

Section B Table B.3 (3) EEOICPA.  Shouldn't the DPLH shown in these 

documents be the same?

Attachment L-8 was updated in Amendment 1 to 

match Section B.

38 B, L B.3, Labor Hour  Cyber 

Security, Computing, and 

IT CLINs

B-3, L-22-23 B.3 states that "This hourly rate should include any materials, travel, 

and training costs and other direct costs associated with these labor 

categories." However in Section L additional columns can only be 

added to the Labor Hour forms to reflect utilizing multiple 

subcontractors.  Will the Government allow additional columns to add 

ODC costs if needed into the fully burdened hourly rate? If adding 

columns is not permitted, how should offeror include ODC costs in 

their Labor Hour rate?

No. Use the columns provided. ODC's may be 

captured in columns d, e, and or f. 

39 C C.3.6 Records Management C-79 Will any records be stored at the site after closure or will they be 

transferred to another organization? If kept at the site, what 

percentage of these records will be classified, OUO or UCNI?

99% of records at the site are electronic and hard 

copies are not maintained.  During the performance 

period of this contract, the Contractor will be 

required to manage all records on-site electronically.  

There will be a small percentage (<1%) that is 

classified in hardcopy or electronically managed in 

secure locations.  OUO and UCNI are electronically 

stored in the records system and properly marked as 

such.

40

C C.2.2.7

Issues Management 

System/Occurrence 

Reporting

C-13

Section C.2.2.7 states, "The Contractor shall develop and implement a 

single computerized comprehensive Issues Management System using 

a "zero-threshold" level for the identification, assignment of 

significance category, and processing for all issues raised across all 

levels of the Contractor’s organization."  “All issues are to be tracked 

in one combined location and disseminated to DOE.” 

Question:  What is meant by "zero-threshold" and “all issues"?  How 

are issues to be disseminated to DOE (expected format and 

frequency)?

"Zero-threshold" and “all issues" means the 

contractor cannot elect to not put in issues (normally 

low significance concerns) that would inhibit/limit 

DOE understanding of an issue or preclude the 

contractor’s own trending of lower lever issues.  

Dissemination is normally via an informational 

document submitted summarizing the information.  

In some cases via email is acceptable and will be 

established through routine working practices.  

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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41

C C.2.2.10
Waste Management and 

Pollution Prevention
C-17

Section C.2.2.10 states, "The Contractor shall report the recycle 

numbers to the DOE on a monthly basis with a breakdown of 

quantities in pounds for glass, plastic, aluminum, paper, computing 

equipment, and cardboard, as well as the number of printer cartridges 

and copier toner cartridges sent to a certified recycler for re-use 

(Deliverable 32)." 

Question 1:  There are no local recyclers that will accept glass, 

distinguish between paper/cardboard, nor separate metals by type.  

Will DOE provide a waste sorting facility so reporting requirements 

can be met or can combined totals be reported where sorting is not 

feasible? 

Question 2:  Is the term "computing equipment" defined as equivalent 

to electronics, electronic waste or electronic scrap?

Question 1.  Totals may be combined where feasible.  

Question 2.  Yes.

42

C C.3.2
Safeguards and Security 

(S&S)
C-27

The PWS states, “The S&S Program applies to the Kentucky 

Department of Fish and Wildlife (pertaining to the DOE licensed land 

adjacent to the Paducah Site), other site tenants, and Paducah Site 

prime contractors.”

Question:  What part of the S&S program applies to the DOE licensed 

land?

Badging, PPA/229 access and controlled/prohibited 

articles and other services as described in the 

licensing documents. 

43

C C.3.2.1.2
Safeguards and Security 

Planning and Procedures
C-28

The PWS states, “This includes maintaining security of foreign 

intelligence and threat assessments as identified in DOE O 5639.8A 

and DOE O 5670.”

Question:  Are these references applicable to the PWS?

Yes, these references are applicable 

44

C C.3.2.1.2
Safeguards and Security 

Planning and Procedures
C-29

Section C.3.2.1.2 states, “The SSP shall include and/or ensure specific 

references to associated plans/procedures and/or description 

processes for the list below:  1)  A listing and prioritization of the 

assets and security interests at the Paducah Site…”.  

Question:  Please clarify what DOE considers a prioritization of our 

assets since the Special Nuclear Material is all the same category and 

attractiveness level.

Priortization of targets as should be described in the 

Site Security Plan. Examples might be nuclear 

material, classified material, personnel, chemicals or 

any other items requiring a protection strategy. 

45

C
C.3.6.5.3 and 

C.3.12.1.1

Classified Records

and

General

C-82 and C-91

Section C.3.6.5.3 states, “Classified documents may be processed 

electronically so long as the computer systems meet all classified 

security requirements.” However, Section C.3.12.1.1 states National 

Security Systems processing classified information are not in-scope.”

Question:  How can records process classified records if NSS is no 

longer in site scope?

The PPPO Federal Office is rolling out a classified 

network (to be available as GFS&I in October 2020) 

for use for records management activities.

46

C C.3.3.4 DOE Site Network C-46

Section C.3.3.4 states, “The Contractor shall provide all basic support 

to the DOE, and TSS Contractor printers, plotters, and copier 

equipment.” 

Question:  Please clarify if the work scope includes local printers or 

networked copier/printers only.

The Contractor manages all the local printers, 

plotters, and copier equipment for themselves, the 

D&R Contractor, and DOE at Paducah.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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47

C C.3.2.2 Unknown C-32 and C-33

Paragraph C.3.2.1.4.2 Security Management in Contract, is the last 

paragraph on Page C-32.  The first paragraph on page C-33 is C.3.2.3 

Physical Protection and there is an item in the QASP for 3.2.2.  

Question: Was C.3.2.2 intentionally left out?  Please clarify.

C.3.2.2 will be identified as RESERVED in an 

amendment.  C.3.2.2 in the QASP will be changed to 

C.3.2.1.

48 C Who is responsible for the Operations and Maintenance of Freon 

(some contaminated)? How and where will it be disposed?

Management of freon in the process buildings and in 

rail cars and storage containers is the responsibility 

of the D&R Contractor and is not included in this 

PWS.

49 C Why is the Government treating IT/Cyber/Computing as Labor Hour 

and the majority of the rest of the contract Firm Fixed Price? What 

changed from the previous contract?

DOE believes that this is the best way to procure 

these services. 

50 C Is verification and testing of I & C Systems included in the RFP? If not, 

where is it and what contractor holds those responsibilities?

The Contractor is responsible for the verification and 

testing, as required by applicable standards, of the 

systems within facilities and for equipment assigned 

to them in performance of the PWS.

51 C IT Are there any opportunities for consolidation and optimization of 

software products?

Yes - Deliverable 108 requires the Contractor to 

submit an annual report of required Paducah Site 

software licenses.  Recommended improvements 

should be part of that deliverable.

52 C How is pest control done? In-house or subcontracted? The Contractor is required to perform the pest 

control required by the PWS.  The Offeror should 

determine whether this is self-performed or 

subcontracted.

53 C IDIQ Will the Government confirm that IDIQ work will or will not include 

vertical construction, Design Bid Build, Design Build, or Construction 

Management At RisK?

It may include any of the items listed in the question.  

See Section C.5.0 for an example list, which includes 

facilities construction.

54 C C.2.1 

ADMINISTRATION 

and C.3.12.1.5 

Personnel 

Appointments 

with Cyber 

Security-

Significant Roles, 

and Section B - 

Cyber Security, 

Computing, and IT 

CLINs: PWS 

Element C.3.12

C.2.1 ADMINISTRATION 

and C.3.12.1.5 Personnel 

Appointments with Cyber 

Security-Significant Roles, 

and Section B - Cyber 

Security, Computing, and 

IT CLINs: PWS Element 

C.3.12

Section B: B-7 

and Section C:  

C-6  and C-92

C.2.1 and C.3.12.1.5 identify a Contingency Plan Coordinator while 

3.12.1.5 and Section B - Cyber Security, Computing, and IT CLINs: PWS 

Element C.3.12 identify a Contingency Plan Director.  Please clarify if 

both a Contingency Plan Coordinator and a Contingency Plan Director 

are required? 

Section B.3(b) will be changed to the IT 

Director/Manager in an amendment.  In the event 

the Contractor chooses to have a key personnel 

position or director, this would be under the firm-

fixed price and is not the position identified as the IT 

Manager in the hourly labor categories.  In Section 

C.3.12.1.5, the cyber security-significant appointed 

roles may be filled by staff personnel and the staff 

positions do not have to correspond one-to-one with 

the role identified and are not labor categories (i.e., 

they are not full-time roles).  An individual may fulfill 

multiple roles.  

55 C C.2.5.2 Personal Property C-21 Is the Property Information Database System (PIDS) the only system 

that the contractor is allowed to use to manage personal property?

DOE requires the use of FIMS and PIDS for 

government furnished property.  The Contractor may 

choose any other system to manage their own 

inventory.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104

9



Paducah Infrastructure Support Services

56 C C.2.5.2 Personal Property C-21 The Contractor shall interface with the Paducah Area Community 

Reuse Organization (PACRO) to transfer eligible excess personal 

property per the PACRO/DOE Property Transition Agreement.  The 

Document Library does not contain a copy of the agreement. Will the 

Government provide a copy of the PACRO/DOE Property Transition 

Agreement?

The PACRO/DOE Property Transition Agreement 

document was added to the Documents Library on 

the RFP website.

57 C C.3.10.2 Radiological 

Instrumentation

87 This paragraph references Attachment J-8.C.3.10.2, Listing of Other 

Site Contractors' Equipment being Maintained.  In Attachment J-8 the 

information is provided J-8.C.3.11.2.  Please correct.

Attachment J-8.C.3.11.2 will be renumbered to J-

8.C.3.10.2 in an amendment.

58 C C.3.10.3 Dosimetry Program 87 This paragraph references Attachment J-8.C.3.10.3, Quantity of 

Personnel Active in Radiological Monitoring Programs.  In attachment 

J-8 the information is provided J-8.C.3.11.2.  Please correct.

Attachment J-8.C.3.11.3 will be renumbered to J-

8.C.3.10.3 in an amendment.

59 C C.3.12.2.4 Hardware C-94 This paragraph references Attachment J-8.C.3.3.2, Information 

Technology Service Matrix. The reference should be Attachment J-

8.C.3.3.1.  Please correct.

This will be corrected in an upcoming amendment.

60 C C.3.4.6 On-Site Fueling Services C-60 What are the hours of operations that should be considered for the 

FFP CLIN?

The fueling station is a self service station.  The 

Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan Performance 

Standard requires the station to be available 24 

hours per day, 7 days per week (at least one diesel 

and one gas operational).   The minimal acceptable 

quality level is 95% operational.

61 C C.3.4.6 On-Site Fueling Services C-60 How many tanks and what size and whtat fuel do they hold? Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3.2.13 provides details on the 

types of tanks and what fuel they contain.

62 C C.3.4.6 On-Site Fueling Services C-60 How many pumps dispence fuel at C-752-B? Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3.2.13 provides details on the 

number of pumps.

63 C C.3.4.5.3 Storm Damage C-60 What has been the historical number of storms and hours required to 

support this item?

This information is not tracked by DOE at the site.  

The Contractor may consult the national weather 

service information for the amount of rainfall 

annually in this region.

64 C C.3.4.5.2 Erosion Repair C-60 What has been the historical number of Erosion Repairs over the past 

3 years?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.

65 C C.3.4.4.1 General C-58 What has been the historical number of Marking, Signage and Device 

Repairs over the past 3 years?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.

66 C C.3.4.4.3 Level I, Scheduled / PM 

Tasks and Standards

C-59 What has been the historical number of Road Repairs over the past 3 

years?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.

67 C C.3.4.4.5 Storm Drainage System 

Maintenance and Repairs

C-59 How many Storm Drainage systems are there?  What has been the 

number of historical repairs from the past 3 years?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.

68 C C.3.4.4.3.4.2) PM Inspections C-59 How many signage items are there along the unpaved surfaces that 

have to be maintained?

Less than 20.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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69 C C.3.4.4.3.2 Records C-59 Will the deficiencies from past inspection be provided for the past 3 

years?

Information is not tracked at this level.  The 

Contractor performs a QA inspection of records. Any 

records not meeting the requirements are returned 

to the Contractor for correction.  The Contractor is 

required to correct their own records being 

processed.

70 C C.3.4.3.2.1 PM Program 

Development

C-55 Will the Government provide a complete list of items currently in the 

CMMS for the bidders to validate and develop our PM program?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 will be provided on 

the Documents Library on the RFP website.

71 C C.3.4.3.2.3 HVAC Systems C-55 Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3.2.3 had on items listed for compressors, 

blower motors, fans, service valves, dampers, condensers, cooling 

coils, pumps, purge units etc.   Will an updated list be provided for 

contractors to estimate?

All the available information is provided on the 

updated Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3.2.3.

72 C C.3.4.3.2.3 HVAC Systems C-55 What has been the historical maintenance and minor repair of HVAC 

systems over past 3 yrs?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.

73 C C.3.4.3.2.5 Elevators C-56 Will the Government provide a list of Elevator by location, type and 

size that contractor must maintain?

The Contractor does not currently have any facility 

assignments with elevators.  The standards are 

included in the event any facilites are assigned in the 

future if elevators are part of those buildings.

74 C C.3.4.3.2.5 Elevators C-56 What has been the historical workload for the past 3 years on 

Elevators?

The Contractor does not currently have any facility 

assignments with elevators.  The standards are 

included in the event any facilites are assigned in the 

future if elevators are part of those buildings.

75 C C.3.4.3.2.6 Refrigeration Equipment C-56 Will the Government provide a list of Refrigeration Equipment by 

location, type and size that contractor must maintain?

Any refrigeration equipment that would be the 

responsibliity of the contractor is included in  

Attachment J-3, Accountable Propety List.  

76 C C.3.4.3.2.7 Relamping C-56 Will the Government provide a list of building for re-lamping with size 

and type of lights to be re lamped that contractor must maintain?

The buildings that the Contractor would be 

repsonsible for are listed in Attachment J-8.C.2.1 

Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix in the S&M 

column as INF.  The site tour provided a visual 

assessment of the larger facilites under the control of 

the Contractor and a sample of trailers under the 

responsibility of the Contractor.  This should provide 

a basis for the type of re-lamping that may be 

required.

77 C C.3.4.3.2.8 Architectural and Traffic 

Signage

C-56 Will the Government provide a list of architectural and traffic signage 

that contractor must maintain? The current RFP adequately provides the estimated 

number of signs needing to be replaced each year.  

Should a significant wind event occur, or if new 

construction or modifications necessitate, the Level II 

Work Order process will be used. See Section 

C.3.4.3.2.8.     
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78 C C.3.4.3.2.10 Warranty Maintenance C-57 Will the Government provide a list of items under warranty by 

location, type and size that contractor must maintain?

Warranty information will be added to the 

Documents Library.

79 C C.3.4.3.2.12 Lighting, Traffic Control 

Devices and Street 

Lighting

C-57 Who is responsible for maintaining Traffic Control Devices?  If the 

contractor is, how many are there and where are they located on the 

site?

The Infrastructure Contractor is responsible for the 

traffic control devices.  They have been added to 

Attachment J-8.C.3.4.4.2a Listing of Roads.

80 C C.3.4.3.3 Level II, Maintenance for 

Facilities

C-58 Will the Government provide a complete list if Level II Service Orders 

for the past 3 years by craft or type to include the time and cost of 

materials?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website. 

81 C C.3.4.2.1 Maintenance 

Management General

C-49 What are the yearly number of Scheduled and Unschedule 

maintenance tasks that have to be schedule and planned by shop or 

craft?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website. 

82 C C.3.4.2.4.5 Configuration 

Management

C-53 How many as built drawning are updated historically on a yearly 

average?

As-builts are typically only required for IDIQ tasks 

involving new construction or facility modifications 

and are identified as deliverables.  However, there 

have been approximately 50 per year.

83 C C.3.4.2.5 Reporting and Status 

Inquiry

C-53 Will the Government provide copies the last 3 years of Deliverable 76? In the previous contract this was a weekly 

deliverable and it is not practical to put three years 

of weekly reports on the Documents Library.  A 

spreadsheet of work orders under the prior contract 

for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website. 

84 C C.3.4.2.3.3 Priority 3 – Routine C-51 Priority 3 – Routine is defined as “maintenance required correcting 

failures which cannot be classified as Priority 1 or Priority 2 shall 

default to Priority 3. The Contractor shall respond within four (4) 

business hours of receipt of notification.” As an example, if a Pri 3 

request occurs after normal duty hours on Saturday morning, would 

the Contractor be required to respond within the first four hours on 

Monday morning?

Yes.

85 C C.3.4.2.4 Computerized 

Maintenance 

Management System 

C-51 This section states in part: “The Contractor shall utilize the CMMS to 

track all maintenance/services, as either LEVEL I or LEVEL II 

maintenance category, as appropriate in accordance with the 

requirements as described throughout Section C.3.5.”  However, 

section C.3.5 only covers FACILITY SERVICES (CUSTODIAL, SNOW/ICE 

ABATEMENT, PEST CONTROL, MOWING). Please clarify the reference 

to C.3.5.

This will be corrected to Section C.3.4 in an 

amendment.
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86 C C.3.4.3.2.1 Preventative Maintenance 

Program Development

C-55 This section states in part: “The Contractor shall develop a 

comprehensive PM program (Deliverable 77) for assigned buildings, 

structures, and installed equipment.  The PM program shall be 

developed from applicable original equipment manufacturer manuals, 

inspection checklists, manufacturer’s standards, industry standards, 

and commercial guides, as applicable.  The Contractor shall identify 

and/or develop maintenance standards and procedures for each 

building and subsystem, structures, and installed equipment to their 

individual component level.” Can offerors safely assume that a  

comprehensive PM program currently exists and that the associated 

CMMS database will be made available to the incoming contractor for 

download and migration of the data to the incoming contractor’s 

CMMS?

Yes.  The current PM Program will be available at 

transition for bluesheeting and data from CMMS will 

be downloaded and available for migration. 

87 C C.3.4.2.4 Computerized 

Maintenance 

Management System

51 Does the Government have a preference as to the CMMS used by the 

contractor? If so, please specify the system.

No, there is no preference.  The current system is 

Maximo.

88 C C.3.4.2.4 Computerized 

Maintenance 

Management System

51 Is the cost of the CMMS covered under PWS 4.0 and the Reimbursable 

CLINs?

No.  See Section C.3.4.2.4 which states, "The cost for 

implementation and maintenance of this program is 

not a cost-reimbursable software item and is 

included in the firm fixed-price scope."

89 C C.3.5.5.3.2 Active Railroad Track 

Scheduled Services

C-77 How many derailers, rail oilers and gear boxes must be maintained? The list of switches is found in Attachment J-

8.C.3.5.5.2b Listing of Switches and Crossings .  All of 

these switches on active track require lubrication, as 

does their associated movable rail structures (i.e. fly 

rails). There are no rail oilers in use at the Paducah 

site.

90 C C.3.5.5.3.4 Drainage System 

Maintenance and Repair

C-78 Will the Government provide a list of the drainage systems for the rail 

system that have to be maintained?

Available railroad culvert information will be added 

to the Documents Library.

91 C C.3.5.5.4 Level II Service Order C-78 Will the Government provide the historical Level II Service Orders for 

the past 3 years?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.  

92 C C.3.5.4.6 Level II Pest Control 

Services: Unscheduled 

Service Request

C-75 Will the Government provide the historical Level IIest Control Services: 

Unscheduled Service Request for the past 3 years?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.  

93 C C.3.5.3.3 Snow and Ice Removal 

Planning

C-72 Will the Government provide the Snow and Ice Removal Plan 

(Deliverable 83) for planning use?  If not will the Government provide 

a list of Priority 1, 2, 3 and 4 areas that contractor is responsible for?

The Snow and ice Removal Plan is included in the 

Document Library on the procurement website and 

remains there for reference.
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94 C C.3.5.4.1 Pest Control Services 

General

C-74 Will the Government clarify exactly which building listed in J-8.C.2.1 

are receiving Pest Control Services as the Column for Pest Contro 

there is no explaination for INF, D&R, DUF6 and N/A?  It is not clear 

and gives the Incumbent an unfair advnatage bidding and staffing Pest 

control.

INF is the Infrastructure Contractor.  Operational 

Responsibliity that lists INF are facilities that the 

Contractor utilizes and manages.  S&M that lists INF 

are facilties that the Contractor maintains.  Janitorial 

that lists INF are facilties that the Contractor is 

required to perform janitorial services in.  Pest 

Control that lists INF are facilities that require 

routine pest control (spraying).  Grounds Services 

that lists INF are facilities that the Contractor must 

perform mowing, weed control, or other grounds 

services as identified in the PWS.

95 C C.3.5.4.1 Pest Control Services 

General

C-74 Are the bidders to assume that for Pest Contol, where there is INF, 

D&R and DUF6 we are to bid and staff for Pest control services?

INF is the Infrastructure Contractor.  Operational 

Responsibliity that lists INF are facilities that the 

Contractor utilizes and manages.  S&M that lists INF 

are facilties that the Contractor maintains.  Janitorial 

that lists INF are facilties that the Contractor is 

required to perform janitorial services in.  Pest 

Control that lists INF are facilities that require 

routine pest control (spraying).  Grounds Services 

that lists INF are facilities that the Contractor must 

perform mowing, weed control, or other grounds 

services as identified in the PWS.

96 C C.3.5.4.5.4) Pest Control Services , 

Removal

C-75 What has been historical workload over past 3 years for removal of 

nuisance animals?

The available Present Nuisance Animal Log is posted 

to the Documents Library.

97 C C.3.5.5.1 General 76 This PWS says: The Contractor shall operate and maintain the PGDP 

rail system.  Please define the contractors rail system operating 

responsibilities (is contractor required to operate locomotives, move 

rail cars, etc.?)

The Contractor is required to ensure that the 

designated rail lines are properly maintained.  The 

Contractor is not responsible for funning locomotives 

or rail car movement.

98 C C.3.6.3.3 Vital Records Program C-80 Will Government add workload to J-8.C.3.6.1 for this requirement? No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  The work has been 

performed as part of a firm-fixed price for the past 

four years and information is not tracked at this 

level.

99 C C.3.6.5 Maintenance / Use C-81 There is mention of J-8C.3.6.3.5 Selected NARA Requirement but not 

listed in Attachment J-8.  Will this be added?

This is currently included in page 275 of the 

Attachment J-8 pdf.  

100 C C.3.6.5.1 Quality Assurance Records C-82 Will the Government provide workload for this specific requirement? No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  The work has been 

performed as part of a firm-fixed price for the past 

four years and information is not tracked at this 

level.
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101 C C.3.6.5.2 Privacy Act Records C-82 Will the Government provide workload for this specific requirement? No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  The work has been 

performed as part of a firm-fixed price for the past 

four years and information is not tracked at this 

level.

102 C C.3.8 ENVIRONMENTAL 

INFORMATION CENTER 

(EIC) OPERATIONS 

85 Attachment J-8.C.2.1 – LISTING OF FACILITIES RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX 

does not list the ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION CENTER. Where is 

the center located?

Emergency Technology Center, Room 221, 5100 

Alben Barkley Dr., Paducah, KY 42001.

103 C C.3.8 ENVIRONMENTAL 

INFORMATION CENTER 

(EIC) OPERATIONS 

85 Is the Environmental Information Center also known as the Joint 

Public Information Center?

No.  They are two different places and functions.  

The Joint Public Information Center or Joint 

Information Center is a function of public 

communication during an emergency.  The 

Environmental Information Center is a physical 

location provided by the Contractor for the public to 

access a computer, printer, and information related 

to the Environmental Remediation Program. 

104 C C.3.6.5.6 Contaminated Records C-83 Will DOE provide specifics regarding type and level of support required 

to support this PWS requirement?

No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  The work has been 

performed as part of a firm-fixed price for the past 

four years and information is not tracked at this 

level.

105 C C.2.2.3 Occupational Radiation 

Protection Program and 

Radiological Site Services

C-10 Provide workload for radiological activities performed by ES&H 

personnel.

DOE does not track or have information on resources 

at this task level.  The offeror is required to 

determine the amount of radiological support 

needed for the work scope of the PWS.

106 C C.2.2.4 Emergency Management C-11 Will DOE provide the level of support required or historical workload 

data to provide this support on this contract?

No.  DOE does not track or have information on 

resources at this task level.  The work has been 

performed as part of a firm-fixed price for the past 

four years and information is not tracked at this 

level.

107 C C.2.2.10 Waste Management and 

Pollution Prevention

C-16 Will DOE provide the level of support required or historical workload 

data for disposition of the waste categories listed in the PWS?

DOE does not track or have information on resources 

at this task level.  The offeror is required to 

determine the amount of engineering support 

needed for the work scope of the PWS.

108 C C.2.3 Engineering C-18 Please provide historical or projected workload (tasks and hours) for 

engineering services provided by the ISS contractor.

DOE does not track or have information on resources 

at this task level.  The offeror is required to 

determine the amount of engineering support 

needed for the work scope of the PWS.
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109 C C.2.3 Engineering C-18 Section C.2.3 states that, among other engineers, radiological 

engineers may be required.  What specific Engineering requirements 

exist?  Can the DOE provide more input as to the nature of the 

Engineering required? Will the contractor be responsible for providing 

any nuclear engineering or will we be involved in the nuclear D&D 

work at all?

The engineering that is required would be related to 

peformance of the PWS.  The Contractor is not 

responsible for any Category 2 nuclear facilities or 

nuclear D&D per the scope of the PWS.

110 C C.2.3 Engineering C-18 Please confirm a  Commonwealth of Kentucky Professional Engineer 

(PE) registration is required for only structural engineering 

assessments and projects.

A P.E. is required for structural engineering 

assessment and projects or any other deliverable 

that regulations require documents or drawings to 

be stamped by the P.E..

111 C C.2.6 EXPORT CONTROL 

INFORMATION (ECI) 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

C-22 Will DOE provide the level of support required or historical workload 

data to provide this support on this contract?

Much of the ECI and HRP scope is new to this 

contract. You do not provide ECI scope to the Duf6 

conversion facility which is responsible for their own 

tecnology reviews for ECI. The contractor will be 

responsible for developing, training, implementing 

the entire ECI/HRP for the entire site, not including 

the Duf6 technology. 

112 C C.2.7 SUPPORT ANNUAL PUBLIC 

AND DOE EVENTS

C-24 Will DOE provide specifics regarding type and level of support required 

to support this PWS requirement?

DOE does not track or have information on resources 

at this task level.  The offeror is required to 

determine the amount of engineering support 

needed for the work scope of the PWS.

113 C C.3.2.3 Physical Protection C-33 What are the customer service work days and hours of operation for 

Visitor Control services?

See Section C.3.2.5 of the PWS.

114 C C.3.2.3.1.5 Escort Requirements C-34 3.2.3.1.5 says: The Contractor shall develop, implement and manage 

the site escort strategies.  ATTACHMENT J-8.C.3.2.1 Security Services 

Workload History shows 1500 escort events. Is that 1500 for all 

contractors or is 1500 for just the ISS contractor?

Attachment J-8.C.3.2.1 has been updated in its 

entirety. The escort strategies and ratios for the site 

are covered in the Site Security Plan which is owned 

by the ISS contractor. Each contractor is responsible 

for providing whatever escorts their SOW require. 

Escorting and escorting strategies are only for any 

uncleared staff or site visitors.

115 C C.3.4.1.1.2 Relocation Services C-46 Are relocation services provided as Level I or Level II service? Neither.  Relocation requirements are identified in 

C.3.4.1.1.2.  The Contractor shall provide up to 500 

direct labor hours annually to support other 

contractors in relocation services as described as 

part of the firm-fixed price.  Anything above the 500 

hours per year would be IDIQ scope.  Any relocation 

performed by the Contractor for its own purposes is 

not part of the 500 hours of service to others and is 

part of the Contractors firm-fixed price as stated in 

Section C.2.5.1.
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116 C F.3, H.3 (B) Transition period of 

performance 

F-2, H-4 Section F states the contract transition period will be approximately 

60 days, however Section H.3 states the "Contract Transition Period" 

means the 90-day transition as defined in Section F of this Contract.  

Would the Government please clarify the transition period length?

The transition period is 60-days. References to a 90-

day transition period will be updated to 60-days in an 

amendment.

117 C, J C.3.4.4.2.c Listing of Bridges 215 of 287 What does the note under the table mean that there is no McCaw 

Bridge road?  Do we maintain or do anything with it?

Note will be modified.  The McCaw Road Bridge no 

longer requires maintenance.  The road leading to 

the bridge on DOE property is required to be 

maintained as needed for access to DOE property 

areas in the vicinity of McCaw road such as the TVA 

substation and Little Bayou Creek monitoring 

locations.

118 C, J C.3.4.3b Maintenance 

Requirements of 

Buildings, Structures, 

Installed Equipment, 

Systems and Components

83 / 287 Will the Government provide workload for this specific requirement to 

include ordered and performed work for the 20 categories listed in 

this attachment?

DOE does not track or have information on resources 

at this task level.  The offeror is required to 

determine the amount of  support needed for the 

work scope of the PWS.

119 C, J ATTACHMENT J-

8.C.3.4.2.2

Estimated Annual Level I 

and II Service Order(s) and 

Example IDIQ Scope

76 / 287 Will the Government provide the Level I Service Orders broken out by 

shop or craft?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.  

120 C, J ATTACHMENT J-

8.C.3.4.2.2

Estimated Annual Level I 

and II Service Order(s) and 

Example IDIQ Scope

76 / 287 Will the Government provide the Level II Service Orders broken out by 

shop or craft?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website. 

121 C, J ATTACHMENT J-

8.C.3.4.2.2

Estimated Annual Level I 

and II Service Order(s) and 

Example IDIQ Scope

76 / 287 Will the Government provide the Level II Service Orders broken by 

Priority 1, 2 and 3 then out by shop or craft?

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.  

122 C, J C.3.4.3.2.3 HVAC Systems by Facility 

Location

194 / 287 Will all the TBD's be updated so the offerors can staff and price those 

as part of the FFP?

Yes - these will be updated in an upcoming 

amendment.

123 C, J C.3.4.3.2.3 HVAC Systems by Facility 

Location

194 / 287 Please confirm that all the N/A mean there are no items to provide 

PM's to.  If this is incorrect will the table be updated with the corrrect 

information?

Where there is an N/A listed in a column, then that 

service is not required for that specific building.

124 C, J C.2.1 Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix

4 to 35 / 287 Who is the D&R Contractor?  Four Rivers Nuclear Partnership, LLC

125 C, J C.2.1 Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix

4 to 35 / 287 Who is the DUF6 Contractor?  Mid-America Conversion Services, LLC

126 C, J C.2.1 Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix

4 to 35 / 287 Is the INF a contractor and if so who is it?  If not, what does INF stand 

for?

INF is the Infrastructure Contractor.  The Contractor 

that performs this RFP's scope of work.  

127 C, J C.2.1 Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix

4 to 35 / 287 Will the Government add a matrix to identy what INF, DUF6 and D&R 

stand for?

A footnote will be added to the matrix in an 

upcoming amendment.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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128 C, J C.2.1 Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix

4 to 35 / 287 Are the bidders to assume that for Pest Contol, where there is INF, 

D&R and DUF6 we are to bid and staff for Janitoral and Grounds 

services?

INF is the Infrastructure Contractor.  Operational 

Responsibliity that lists INF are facilities that the 

Contractor utilizes and manages.  S&M that lists INF 

are facilties that the Contractor maintains.  Janitorial 

that lists INF are facilties that the Contractor is 

required to perform janitorial services in.  Pest 

Control that lists INF are facilities that require 

routine pest control (spraying).  Grounds Services 

that lists INF are facilities that the Contractor must 

perform mowing, weed control, or other grounds 

services as identified in the PWS.

129 C, J C.2.1 Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix

4 to 35 / 287 What does the last column Type Grp mean to the bidders? There is no such term in the facilities matrix.

130 C, J J-8.C.3.4.1.3 Fleet Vehicles Attachment J8 

p. 1 of 3

Can the Government please identify which of the DOE owned and GSA 

owned vehicles are assigned to the Infrastructure Support Services 

contractor?

The listed of vehicles and whether they are DOE 

owned or GSA vehicles is listed in Attachment J-

8.C.3.4.1.3.

131 C, J J-8.C.3.4.2.2 Estimated Annual Level I 

and II Service Order(s) and

Example IDIQ Scope

Page 2 of 3 Please confirm there were only 2,117 scheduled maintenance actions 

that resulted in 78,489 man hours for Level I scheduled maintenance.  

That data suggests that over 37 man hours were expended on average 

for each Level I scheduled service order. This seems unrealistically 

high. Please confirm.

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.  

132 C, J J-8.C.3.4.2.2 Estimated Annual Level I 

and II Service Order(s) and

Example IDIQ Scope

Page 2 of 3 Annual Number of Level I Service Orders = 2,117

Labor Hours for Level I Service Order = 78,489

How is the workload allocated? Please provide the allocations for all 

crafts personnel and shops for the historical data provided, i.e., 

Electrical = XXX services orders, X,XXX labor hours; Janitorial = XXX 

service orders, X,XXX labor hours, etc. (similar to the Level II data 

provided). 

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 will be provided on 

the Documents Library on the RFP website.  It is not 

tracked by craft type.

133 C, J J-8.C.3.4.2.2 Estimated Annual Level I 

and II Service Order(s) and

Example IDIQ Scope

Page 2 of 3 Annual Number of Level II Service Orders = 118

Labor Hours for Level II Service Order = 2,902

How is the workload allocated? Please provide the allocations for all 

crafts personnel and shops for the historical data provided, i.e., 

Electrical = XXX services orders, X,XXX labor hours; Janitorial = XXX 

service orders, X,XXX labor hours, etc. (similar to the Level II data 

provided). 

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.  

134 C, J Attachment J-

8.C.2.1

Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix

Section J-Attachment J-12 does not  list the acronym INF. What does 

the acronym INF stand for?

A footnote will be added to the matrix in an 

amendment.

135 C, J C.3.5.4 and 

Attachment J-

8.C.2.1

Pest Control Services and 

Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix

Please identify the buildings and facilities that receive Level I 

scheduled pest control services.

They are listed in the Listing of Facilities 

Responsibility Matrix under the Pest Control column 

that has INF identified for that facility.

Source Selection Information – See FAR 2.101 and 3.104
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136 C, J C.3.4.3.2.1 and 

Attachment J-

8.C.3.4.3b

Preventive Maintenance C-55 The PWS says:  For each facility, the Contractor shall address all 

installed equipment (e.g., HVAC, electrical equipment, fixtures, etc.) 

and building systems (e.g., roofing systems; structural components; 

interior walls, ceilings, and trim; interior and exterior doors; windows 

and screens; stairs and stairwells; cabinets and countertops; interior 

accessories; flooring and floor covering; exterior walls; exterior trim 

gutters and downspouts; exterior concrete and masonry structures; 

exterior accessories; overhead or rolling doors; signage; refrigeration 

equipment; plumbing systems; electrical material and equipment; 

elevators; etc.)                            Question #1:  Unlike HVAC systems no 

inventories are provided for electrical equipment. Please provide an 

equipment list so offerors can determine the level of PM effort 

required.                                                                                                                                                                                                             

Question #2:  Unlike HVAC systems no inventories are provided for 

plumbing systems. Please provide an equipment list so offerors can 

determine the level of PM effort required.                                                                                                                                           

Question #3:  Unlike HVAC systems no inventories are provided for 

refrigeration equipment. Please provide an equipment list so offerors 

can determine the level of PM effort required.                                                                                                                                           

Question #4:  Unlike HVAC systems no inventories are provided for 

public address and public warning systems. Please provide an 

equipment list so offerors can determine the level of PM effort 

required.

Question #1.  There are no electrical equipment 

inventories available.  Question #2  There is no listing 

of plumbing systems available.  Question 3.  There is 

no specialty refrigeration equipment in facilities 

under this Contractor's responsibility.  Question 4.  

Available public address and public warning system 

information will be posted in the Documents Library 

on the RFP website.  PMs will be provided in the 

work order spreadsheet in the Documents Library.

137 General General question regarding ODCs: Can DOE provide the site’s historical 

annual average costs for ODCs, i.e. disposable PPE, cleaning supplies, 

paper products, and other similar ODC items?

DOE does not track or have information on resources 

at this task level.  The offeror is required to 

determine the amount of  support needed for the 

work scope of the PWS.

138 I I-199 FAR 52.216-11 COST 

CONTRACT – NO FEE

I-63 Does the inclusion of FAR 52.216-11 mean that all cost reimbursable 

CLINS are only billable at cost (including applicable indirects, but 

excluding fee)? Or is fee allowable on these items?

Section C.4.0 states: "The cost reimbursement CLIN 

includes the following specific cost reimbursement 

items.  No direct labor costs, indirect costs, or fee 

shall be paid in addition to or related to cost 

reimbursement items included in PWS Section C.4.0.  

Any support related to managing the cost 

reimbursement work must be included in the 

Contractor’s Firm-Fixed Price."
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139 J Attachment J-3 Attachment J-3 Attachment J3 

1 of 88

In Section J, Attachment J-3 Accountable Property List there are six 

Ford Escape 2009 model sedans with consecutive ID numbers. In 

Section J, Attachment J-8.C.3.4.1.3 Fleet Vehicles there are also six 

Ford Escape 2009 model sedans with consecutive ID numbers. 

However, the ID numbers on each list are not the same. Do these 

represent 12 different sedans or only six? On Attachment J-3 there are 

also a Ford F250 and a Chevy Silverado Pickup 4x2 with the same ID 

numbers as two like vehicles in Attachment J-8.C.3.4.1.3 Fleet 

Vehicles. Can the Government please clarify the discrepancies?

There is no discrepancy. The six Ford Escapes, the 

Ford F250 and the Chevy Silverado are the same 

ones on both lists since they are DOE owned.  The 

Asset ID numbers in Attachment J-3 is the same as in 

the descriptions or in the number column in 

Attachment J-8.C.3.4.1.3.   

140 J Attachment J-3 Attachment J-3 Can the Government please identify which of the vehicles are assigned 

to the Infrastructure Support Services contractor for use on the 

contract?

All the vehicles identified in Attachment J-8.C.3.4.1.4 

Fleet Vehicles (the government owned ones are also 

included in Attacjhment J-3) are assigned to the 

Infrastructure Support Services Contractor for use on 

the contract.

141 J C.3.12.2 Information Technology 

System, Application 

Inventory and Workload 

History

Could the government clarify what the security requirements are for 

each system listed? For example, what is unclassified general support 

systems, industrial control systems, or major applications? Could the 

government also provide the estimated scale and size of each system?

The cyber security requirements are identified in 

DOE O 205.1C.  The scale and size should be 

estimated based on the number of end-users and 

software identified in Attachment C.3.3.1, 

Information Technology Service Matrix. 

142 J J-8.C.3.4.2.2 Estimated Annual Level I 

and II Service Order(s) and 

Example IDIQ Scope

J-8.C.3.4.2.2

Page 2

This section provides the "Annual Number of Level I Service Orders" 

for 2018.  In order to make a FFP cost estimate, please provide the 

material and subcontractor costs for Level I and Level II below the limit 

of liability.

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 is provided on the 

Documents Library on the RFP website.  

143 J J-1 PERFORMANCE 

REQUIREMENTS 

SUMMARY

A-1 In the QUALITY ASSURANCE SURVEILLANCE PLAN, if the "Deduction" is 

listed at "5% of CLIN" and the Surveillance Frequency is Monthly, 

Quarterly, or Annual, is the deduction applicable to the full Month, 

Quarter, or Annual period? Or monthly until corrected? Can the 

Government clarify how these deductions are levied?

The deduction is based on a percentage of the 

applicable CLIN value relative to the surveillance 

frequency (i.e. monthly, quarterly, etc.)

144 J J-8.C.3.4.2.2 Estimated Annual Level I 

and II Service Order(s) and 

Example IDIQ Scope

J-8.C.3.4.2.2

Page 2

This section provides the "Annual Number of Level I Service Orders" 

for 2018.  In order to make a FFP cost estimate, please provide the 

material and subcontractor costs for Level I and Level II below the limit 

of liability.

A spreadsheet of work orders under the prior 

contract for FY17, FY18, and FY19 will be provided on 

the Documents Library on the RFP website.  

145

J
Attachment J-

8.C.3.3.1

Information Technology 

Service Matrix
2 of 2

The PWS states that Cyber Security Services are inclusive of DUF6; 

however, DUF6 is not included in J-8.C.3.3.1, Information Technology 

Service Matrix.  

Question:  Should Cyber Security Services and any other services 

applicable to DUF6 be listed in the matrix?

Attachment J-8.C.3.3.1 will be updated in an 

amendment.

146

J J-8.C.3.12.2

Information Technology 

System, Application 

Inventory, & Workload 

History

9 of 14

Should VoIP maintenance software be classified as a cost reimbursable 

core software and listed in J-8.C.3.12.2, Information Technology 

System, Application Inventory and Workload History?

The project is currently transitioning to VoIP and the 

software has not yet been identified.  Any new 

software required will be cost reimburseable.  
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20



Paducah Infrastructure Support Services

147 J Attachment J-8 Workload There is no listing of facility assets to be maintained in the RFP. This is 

needed to accurately estimate craftsmen staffing (HVAC, Plumbing, 

Electricity, etc.) Please provide.

The buildings that the Contractor would be 

responsible for are listed in Attachment J-8.C.2.1 

Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix in the S&M 

column as INF.  The site tour provided a visual 

assessment of the larger facilites under the control of 

the Contractor and a sample of trailers under the 

responsibility of the Contractor.  There are a 

signficiant number of J-8 attachments related to the 

assets and reference documents in the Documents 

Library.

148
J J-8.C.3.2.1 2-7 of 7

Please clarify the accuracy of the numbers and expected work 

represented in these tables.

Tables will be updated in an amendment to reflect 

the current and projected workload. 

149 J Attachment J-13 IPR and ARD Recurring 

Reports

The PWS numbering in Attachment J-13 C.3.0 FIRM-FIXED-PRICE AND 

LABOR HOUR WORK  (C.3.2 - C3.5 and C.3.10 ) does not align to the 

PWS numbering in Section C. Please correct.

This Attachment will be updated in an amendment.

150 L L.11.b.2 – Section 

H

(ii) H. 30 DOE-H-2052, 

Representations, 

Certifications, and Other 

Statements of the Offeror 

(Oct 2014) (Revised);

 L-11 This instruction references “H.30 DOE-H-2052, Representations, 

Certifications, and Other Statements of the Offeror (Oct 2014) 

(Revised)”. However, in Section H of the RFP (p. H-40), H.30 references 

DOE-H-2053 Worker Safety and Health Program, and H.29 is the DOE-

H-2052 Representations, Certifications, etc.

Please confirm the Section L reference to H.30 was an error and the 

Offeror is to complete H.29 DOE-H-2052 Representations, 

Certifications, and Other Statements of the Offeror (Oct 2014) 

(Revised).

Confirmed. Section L will be updated in an 

amendment to reflect this change.

151 L  L.11.b.2 – Section 

H

(iii) H.34 DOE-H-2058, 

Designation and Consent 

of Teaming Subcontracts 

(Oct 2014)

 L-11 This instruction references “H.34 DOE-H-2058, Designation and 

Consent of Teaming Subcontracts (Oct 2014)”. However, in Section H 

of the RFP (p. H-42), H.34 references “DOE-H-2059 Preservation Of 

Antiquities, Wildlife And Land Areas (Oct 2014)” and H.33 is “DOE-H-

2058 Designation And Consent Of Teaming Subcontracts – Alternate I 

(OCT 2014) (REVISED)”

Please confirm the Section L reference to H.34 was an error and the 

Offeror is to complete H.33 “DOE-H-2058 Designation And Consent Of 

Teaming Subcontracts – Alternate I (OCT 2014) (REVISED)”

Confirmed. Section L will be updated in an 

amendment to reflect this change.
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152 L L.11.b and L.11.d L.11.b – General and 

L.11.d – Administrative 

Information

L-11 and L-12 L.11 states (in part) “Offerors shall include the information listed in the 

following paragraphs in Volume I, assembled in the order listed.” 

RFP section “L.11.d Administrative Information” references various 

sub-elements of “FAR 52.215-1, Instructions to Offerors - Competitive 

Acquisition.” Because this FAR clause requires that “(c)(2) The first 

page of the proposal must show – (i) the solicitation number; (ii) The 

name, address, and telephone and facsimile numbers of the offeror 

(and electronic address if available)..(etc.)”

Would the Government please confirm that the requirements in 

Section L.11.d – Administrative Information should be assembled in 

the order prescribed by Section L (and NOT as the first page of the 

proposal as required by FAR 52.215-1 paragraphs 2(i) through 2(v))?

Confirmed. The Offeror shall  follow the 

requirements and order prescribed by Section L.11.d.

153 L L.11 DOE-L-2002 PROPOSAL 

PREPARATION 

INSTRUCTIONS, VOLUME I 

– OFFER AND OTHER 

DOCUMENTS

11 There appears to be a conflict between requirements (b) and (b)(1)(i). 

(b) states: No price/cost information shall be included in the Volume I. 

(b)(1)(i) calls for Contract Pricing to be included in Volume I. Please 

clarify this conflict.

The underlined sentence "No price/cost information 

shall be included in the Volume I" will be deleted 

from Section L.11(b) in an amendment.

154 L Performance Guarantee 

Agreement

L-45 - L-46 Lines 2-3 of paragraph 1 reference the Portsmouth Site. Will DOE EM 

provide a replacement form referencing the Paducah Site?

Language will be updated to "Paducah" in an 

amendment.

155 L - Can an Offeror bid on certain parts of the RFP or is the Offeror 

required to bid on the entire RFP?

An Offeror must  submit a complete proposal in 

accordance with Section L of the RFP.

156 L L.11 Proposal Preparation 

Instructions - Volume I

L-11 L.11(b) states "No price/cost information shall be included in Volume 

I", yet L.11(b)(1) lists the completed section B.3 Contract Pricing as the 

first information to be included in Volume I. Can the Government 

clarify this discrepancy, as the completed Section B.3 will contain price 

information.

The underlined sentence "No price/cost information 

shall be included in the Volume I" will be deleted 

from Section L.11(b) in an amendment.

157 L L.11 Proposal Preparation 

Instructions - Volume I

L-11 Please clarify that under L.11(b)(2)(ii) & (iii), the H.30 should be H.29 

and H.34 should be H.33. 

Confirmed. Section L will be updated in an 

amendment to reflect this change.

158 L L.10 Proposal Preparation 

Instructions - General

L-9 L-10(f)(4) requires spreadsheets in print shall be 10 point or larger, and 

that print type on provided Excel files shall not be changed. Can the 

Government confirm that adding one of the worksheets in print form 

at whatever size that happens to be is acceptable? If not, can we print 

off worksheet to multiple pages? When printing to fit a page, how do 

we confirm that the printed Excel file is 10 point or larger? Can this 

requirement be waived on Volume III, as there is no page limit. 

The contractor must follow the instructions in L.10 (f) 

(4).

159 L L-15(a-f) and L-

14(a2)

Font size for resumes and 

Attachment L-3

L-17 thru 20 The font size in the Attachment L-3 and resume templates appears to 

be TNR 11.  Is that correct?

That is correct.
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160

L Attachment L-1 Key Personnel Resumes L-17

Attachment 1, Resume format indicates that we can amend the 

format as long as the exact information, font size, and page limitations 

are followed. 

Question: The form is in 11-point Times New Roman so we assume we 

are to put the resumes in 11-point Times New Roman font and not the 

general instructions of using Times New Roman 12 point for the 

proposal. Is this a correct assumption?

The contractor must follow the instructions in L.10 (f) 

(4).

161

L L.15
Past Performance L-3 

Form Instruction
L-20

Sections 17 and 18 require Offerors to first list the complexity the 

company is proposed to perform. Section 18 then requires us to 

discuss the complexity of work performed on referenced contract. 

Question 1: Do you want the information for Section 17 listed by just 

Performance Challenges as we are unclear what type of proposed 

complexity you want to see addressed here?

Question 2: Do we just discuss the Performance Challenges only in this 

section? Will the DOE provide additional instructions on this area so 

we are clear with what you want versus information supplied in 16 on 

scope performed.

Question 1 and Question 2: See definitions for 

"scope and "complexity"  in Section L.15(b).

162

L L.15(h)
Past Performance 

Questionnaire L-4
L-20

Offeror shall provide the Past Performance Questionnaire to the 

contract client reference for completion for those contracts described 

in paragraph (a) for which no performance data is available in the 

CPARS.

Question 1: If a Team Subcontractor performed as lead for which an L-

3 form is being submitted, but the Reference Contract was held by the 

proposed Prime offeror, would the Government accept the Prime’s 

CPARs for the Team Subcontractor if the CPARs specifically evaluates 

the scope of the work areas for which the subcontractor is 

responsible?

Question 2: If the Team subcontractor performed the work under a 

Prime contract who does the Team subcontractor send the PPQ to? In 

most case the prime contractor was their client and knows the work 

scope. Please advise.

Question 1: Yes, also see Section M.6(a). Question 2:  

See Section L.15(h) and Attachment L-4, asterisk in 

Box A.

163

L L.16(g)

Proposal Preparation 

Instructions - Volume III: 

Price Proposal

L-23

In Section L.16(g) and Section F.3, the solicitation references a 60-day 

Transition Period.  Other sections [e.g., H.3(b)] are referencing a 90-

day Transition. 

Question: We assume the transition is 60 days. Is that a correct 

assumption?   

The transition period is 60-days. References to a 90-

day transition period will be updated to 60-days in an 

amendment.

164

L L.14(1)

Proposal Preparation 

Instructions, Volumen II - 

Key Personnel and 

Organization

L-16 & L-17

The Offeror shall not provide the names or qualifications of any non-

key personnel. 

Question:  Is the intent of this instruction to only apply to the Key 

Personnel section?

Yes, this instruction only applies to the Key Personnel 

section of Technical Factor 2. It is recognized that the 

names or qualifications of any non-key personnel 

may be introduced when proposing to L.14(b) 

Organization.
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165

L L-11(b)

DOE-L-2002 Proposal 

Preparation Instructions, 

Volume I - Offer and 

Other Documents - 

Alternate II, Alternate III, 

Alternate IV, Alternate V, 

and Alternate VI (Oct 

2015)

L-11

Section L11 (b) states "No price/cost information shall be included in 

Volume I. However, paragraph Section L.11 (b) (1) (i), requires Section 

B.3 Contract Pricing to be included in Volume I.  There appears to be a 

conflict.  

Question: Will the government please clarify if the Section B.3 

Contract pricing should be included in Volume I and be completed 

showing the pricing numbers?

The underlined sentence "No price/cost information 

shall be included in the Volume I" will be deleted 

from Section L.11(b) in an amendment.

166

L Attachment L-7
Performance Guarantee 

Agreement
L-45

The paragraph states "for the provision of infrastructure services at 

the Portsmouth".  It appears this should have stated Paducah instead 

of Portsmouth.  

Question: Will the government correct this language?

Language will be updated to "Paducah" in an 

amendment.

167

L Attachment L-8 Price Proposal Workshets L-8

Base IDIQ CLIN and Option IDIQ CLIN worksheets requirements. 

Question 1: Does the Base IDIQ CLIN worksheet represent the entire 

Base period of 34 months? 

Question 2: Does the IDIQ Option CLIN worksheet represent the entire 

24 month period? 

Question 3: Assuming that items 1 and 2 are correct, should the 

quantity for the periods be adjusted to reflect the number of months 

included in each period?

Question 1: Yes. Question 2: Yes. Question 3: No, the 

quantities for each period were intentionally set the 

same.

168 L Technical Factor 3, Past 

Performance

The Pre-Proposal slides stated that Offeror's are to provide 3 past 

performance examples for the Offeror and all others, including 

teaming partners, major subcontractors, etc. The RFP requires 3 past 

performance examples for the Offeror and 2 for others. Please clarify.

When there is a discrepancy, the RFP as issued 

prevails. Offerors must follow what is stated in the 

RFP Section L, Provision L.15.

169 L Key Personnel 

Commitments

A pre-proposal slide states "Key Personnel must commit for 2 years", 

but also says "for the 34 month base period." Which is correct?

When there is a discrepancy, the RFP as issued 

prevails. Offerors must follow Section H, Provision 

H.42 and Section L, Provision L.14 of the RFP. 

170 L L.10.h.1 (h) Questions L-10 There is an apparent conflict between the RFP cover letter and Section 

L of the RFP, as pertains to the time questions are due. Will the 

Government please confirm that questions are due "no later than 

11:59 p.m. Eastern Time, February 18, 2020" ?

Confirmed. Questions were accepted through 11:59 

p.m. Eastern Time, February 18, 2020 as specified by 

Section L.10(h).

171 L Proposal 

Preparation 

Instructions - 

Volume II: 

Technical 

Approach

Factor 1 - Technical 

Approach

L-16 Section L.13, paragraph (b) indicates “The Offeror shall describe its 

approach to achieve the following PWS elements: C.2.2 Environment, 

Safety, Health, and Quality (ESH&Q) Program; C.2.4 Project 

Management; C.3.2 Safeguards and Security (S&S) and C.3.12 Cyber 

Security, Computing, and Information Technology (IT)” 

Please confirm that the 25 page technical response must only address 

PWS sub-sections C.2.2, C.2.4, C.3.2, C.3.12 

Offerors must include all information required by 

Section L, Provision L.13. L.13(b) states "(b) The 

Offeror shall describe its approach to achieve the 

following PWS elements: C.2.2 Environment, Safety, 

Health, and Quality (ESH&Q) Program; C.2.4 Project 

Management; C.3.2 Safeguards and Security (S&S) 

and C.3.12 Cyber Security, Computing, and 

Information Technology (IT)."
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172 L Proposal 

Preparation 

Instructions - 

Volume III: Price 

Proposal

L-23 Paragraph (i) says: For informational purposes only, historical FY 2019 

FTE Headcounts have been provided below:  The table shows Salaried 

Employees = 140 FTEs (1 Grandfathered) and Union Employees = 46 

FTEs (29 Grandfathered).                              

Question:  The CBA does not show any clerical or administrative 

personnel as part of the bargaining unit, yet there are no Service 

Contract Labor Standards Act (SCA) employees referenced in the table.  

Since hourly workers not covered by the CBA can not be covered as 

Exempt employees please provide data that addresses the number 

and types of hourly workers that should be covered as SCA employees. 

Clerical and Administrative Personnel are not 

bargaining unit employees.  The table does not break 

out the exempt and non-exempt salaried employees.  

Additional information regarding the current 

workforce is pending.  The table will not be modified 

to break down the salaried employees.

173 L Proposal 

Preparation 

Instructions - 

Volume III: Price 

Proposal

L-23 Will the Government break out the 186 employees in the FY 2019 FTE 

Headcount  table into firm fixed price, IDIQ, and labor hour work?

No.  The offeror is expected to bid the workforce 

required to perform the requirements of the PWS.

174 L L.11 (b) (2) Section H Reps and certs L-11 The solicitation directs contractors to fill in certain clauses and reps 

and certs, including the direction "In cases where the Offeror is 

required to fill in information in a contract clause, the Offeror shall 

submit only those pages the require input of information or a 

signature."  Can the Government confirm whether only those pages 

with text changes are the only pages that need submission, or 

whether each clause in it's entirety can be included for ease of 

reading?  

For purposes of Section L, Provision L.11, Clauses 

that require fill-in information may be presented in 

their entirety.

175 L.15 L.15.h (h) Questions L-20

In certain instances, the Government will not issue public CPARS for 

work performed on Top Secret/Classified projects/site. In those cases, 

will the Government accept Award Fee Letters in the absence of 

CPARS? If so, will the Government permit these pages to be inserted 

(outside of page count) after the related Attachment L-3 Past 

Performance Reference Information Form? 

Past Performance submissions are limited to those 

specified in Section L, Provision L.15.

176 L Section L, L-8 TAB 

Section B Table 

B.3 (4) IT

IT DPLH Section L, L-8 

TAB Section B 

Table B.3 (4) IT

Please define DPLH.  How did the government arrive at the DPLH 

provided?  Is the Government stating the DPLH for one full time IT 

labor category is 1,800 direct hours as shown in section B Table B.3 

94) IT?

DPLH is an acronym for "Direct Productive Labor 

Hours."  Government-provided DPLH by labor 

category are based on the estimated hours needed 

to perform on Labor Hour CLINS. For purposes of this 

RFP, one full-time equivalent (FTE) is 1,800 DPLH.

177 L Section L, L-8 

Paducah 

Infrastructure 

TAB, DPLH (Labor Hour 

CLIN)

Can DOE explain the basis for the DPLH provided for Section C.3.11 

EEOICPA Support and Section C.3.12 Cyber, Computing, and IT?  

Government-provided DPLH by labor category are 

based on the estimated hours needed to perform on 

Labor Hour CLINS.

178 L Section L, L-8 

Paducah 

Infrastructure 

TAB, Section B Table 

B.3(3) EEOICPA

In columns C and L of the worksheet DOE has placed a DPLH for each 

labor category.  Can prime offerors propose different DPLH in columns 

D and M, and subcontractors propose their DPLH in columns E and N?  

Yes, however, Prime Estimated DPLH and 

Subcontractor DPLH must match the Government-

provided DPLH by labor category in columns C and L.
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179 L Section L, L-8 

Paducah 

Infrastructure 

TAB, Section B Table 

B.3(4) IT

In columns C and L of the worksheet DOE has placed a DPLH for each 

labor category.  Can prime offerors propose different DPLH in columns 

D and M, and subcontractors propose their DPLH in columns E and N?  

Yes, however, Prime Estimated DPLH and 

Subcontractor DPLH must match the Government-

provided DPLH by labor category in columns D and 

M.

180 L Section L, L-8 

Paducah 

Infrastructure 

TAB, Section B Table 

B.3(3) EEOICPA and TAB, 

Section B Table B.3(4) IT

Please confirm the extended price in columns H and Q is the Prime 

Estimated DPLH multiplied by the Prime Fully Burdened Hourly Rate.

Incorrect. The Extended Price in columns H and Q 

should correlate to column U, "Total Estimated 

Price," in the Attachment J-8 TABS labeled "Labor 

Hour CLINs (EEOICPA)" and "Labor Hour CLINs (IT)."

181 L Section L, L-8 

Paducah 

Infrastructure 

Base IDIQ and Option IDIQ 

CLINs

Please confirm the Estimated quantities shown with each TAB are the 

same for both the 34 month Base period and the 24 month Option 

Period? (i.e., railroad tie replacement: 250 each for 34 month base 

period and 250 each for 24 month option period)

Correct, confirmed.

182 L L.1 FAR 52.252-1 

SOLICITATION 

PROVISIONS 

INCORPORATED BY 

REFERENCE (FEB

1998)

L-3 The instructions indicate: "The Offeror is cautioned that the listed 

provisions may include blocks that must be completed by the Offeror 

and submitted with its quotation or offer." FAR 52.215-20 and FAR 

52.222-23 both have entries under the "Fill-In Information" column, 

but both appear to be fill-in clarifications from the Contracting Officer. 

Please advise if the Offerors are expected to include these fill-ins 

within our proposal response.

The referenced FAR clauses contain Contracting 

Officer fill-ins and do not require Offeror response.

183 L L.16( i) historical FY 2019 FTE 

Headcounts

L-23 The Table only lists Salaried (Exempt) and Union (CBA) employees.  

Where is the head count for Hourly ( SCA) for all the clericial and 

positions that cannot be Exempt/ Salaried or not listed in the 

Union/CBA?  Please update the table.

Clerical and Administrative Personnel are not 

bargaining unit employees.  The table does not break 

out the exempt and non-exempt salaried employees.  

Additional information regarding the current 

workforce will be provided in the Document Library.  

The table will not be modiifed to break down the 

salaried employees.

184 L L.16( i) historical FY 2019 FTE 

Headcounts

L-23 What does the 1 and 29 Granfathered head count mean?   How does 

that effect staffing and pricing?  Please explain how bidders other than 

incumbent can understand and use this information.

It means that historically there were 30 

grandfathered employees as part of the FY 2019 

headcount.  The definition for "grandfathered" is in 

Section H, along with any specific requirements for 

those employees.

185

L, H
L-14(a) and 

H.42(A)

Proposal Preparation 

Instructions, Volumen II - 

Key Personnel and 

Organization

and

DOE-H-2070 Key 

Personnel - Alternate I 

(Oct 2014) (Deviation)

L-16 and H-48

The PWS lists one of the Key Personnel as Project Manager in Section 

H.42, while Section L.14 Factor 2 lists one of the Key Personnel as 

Program Manager.  

Question:  Please clarify which title is to be used Project Manager or 

Program Manager.

Program Manager is the title to be used for this Key 

Personnel. H.42 will be amended to match.
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186 Volume I – Offer and 

Other Documents

70 At the Pre-Proposal Conference, completed Section G.5, Defective or 

Improper Invoices, and G.6, Contractor’s Program Manager are 

identifed as examples of required fill-in information. The RFP specifies 

"TBD" instead of "Offeror Fill-In" for both of these items. Should the 

offerors infer that other instances of TBD are also Offeror Fill-Ins? The 

RFP includes more than 30 instances of TBD. Some of these, such as in 

F.3 and J-8, appear to be EMCBC Fill-Ins for a future date. Would the 

Government clarify which of the TBDs are to be submitted with the 

proposal as Offeror Fill-Ins?

In general, TBD's refer to Government fill-ins upon 

contract award. However, Section G.5 and G.6 TBD's 

will be changed to "Offeror Fill-In" in an amendment. 

187 NA General NA For documents that are Official Use Only and/or Unclassified 

Controlled Nuclear Information (UCNI), would the Government open a 

proposal reading room site where Offerors who have signed a 

Nondisclosure Agreement may access these documents?

OUO/UCNI documents related to this procurement 

are only available via mailed CD-ROM after DOE has 

received a signed Non-Disclosure Agreement. 

Instructions on how to obtain the documents can be 

found on the procurement website under 

"Requesting Controlled Unclassified Information". 

188 Key Personnel H.42/L.14 Slide 67, Site Tour briefing, states in part "Letters of commitment for a 

period of not less than two years (including the transition period) are 

required for each proposed Key Personnel (Section L, Attachment L-2).  

This period of time is commensurate with the transition period and 

the base period of performance." The transition period and the base 

period combined represents 36 months, or three years. Please clarify 

this discrepancy between two years and three years.

The Key Personnel commitment period is for two 

years, including the transition period, as specified by 

H.42 and L.14. The pre-proposal conference slide was 

in error in this regard.

189 Please provide the current shift schedule(s) for all personnel working 

under the ISS contract.

Section F, F.5 identifies the normal hours of 

operation.  The Contractor will establish work hours 

for it's employees to cover the requirements of the 

PWS.

190 Pre-Proposal Conference Will the pre-proposal conference briefing be available to Bidders as a 

downloadable content?

Information has been posted on the procurement 

website under the "Pre-Proposal and Site Tour" tab.

191 Pre-Proposal Conference Please introduce and share the roles of the Government personnel 

who attended the site visit.

Buz Smith is the DOE representative that coordinates 

site tours, public affairs, and property management.  

Tracey Duncan is the DOE representative and the 

Infrastructure Lead at the Paducah Site.

192 Contract Value What is the currrent contract value? How does this compare with the 

Government estimate for this RFP?

See Section L.16(h) for estimated funding levels per 

contract year. 

193 How many Full-Time-Equivalents are employed under the current 

contract?

See Section L.16(i).

194 Does DOE have a requirement regarding: a minimum amount of work 

to be subcontracted to Small Businesses and or to other specific 

categories (Hub Zones, Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small 

Businesses, etc?)

No.  This is a 100% small business set-aside 

procurement.
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195

Where are the nickel ingots being stored and are they under cover?

The nickel ingots are stored outside within the 

Limited Area of PGDP and are not under cover.  The 

assigned area is managed by the D&R Contractor and 

management is not part of the Infrastructure Scope.

196 Would DOE consider adding the disposition of the 9600 MT of the 

surplus nickel to this RFP?

DOE will not consider adding the disposition of nickel 

to this RFP.

197

H H-42 (B) Key Personnel H-48

In Section H.42(B) the solicitation states that "All key personnel shall 

be permanently assigned full-time to their respective postions and 

employed by the Prime".

Question:  Because this is a small-business set-aside contract, would 

the Government consider expanding the two additional other Key 

Personnel to include Managers of Teaming Subcontractors as defined 

in Section L.109(a)(2)?

Section H, H.42 will be amended to clarify this clause. 

198 H, L H 42 and 

L.10(a)(1)

Key Personnel 

Requirements

H 47-49 and L-

5

Section H; H.42 Key Personnel, (B); in regards to key personnel 

requirements, states, “All key personnel shall be permanently assigned 

full-time to their respective positions and employed by the Prime.” 

L.10(a)(1) states “The term “Offeror,” as used in this Section L, refers 

to the single entity submitting the proposal. The Offeror may be a 

single corporation or a “Contractor team arrangement” as defined in 

FAR 9.601(1).” This limits “Contractor Team Arrangements,” to two or 

more companies that form a partnership or joint venture to act as a 

potential prime contractor and appears to disadvantage firms pursuing 

this contract using a prime -sub arrangement.  FAR 9.601(2) allows a 

“Contractor Team Arrangement” to include a potential prime 

contractor that agrees with one or more other companies to have 

them act as its subcontractors under a specified Government contract 

or acquisition program. Would DOE expand the definition of “Offeror” 

to include Contractor Team Arrangements as defined in FAR 9.601(2) 

and allow key personnel to be drawn from the contractor team?

Section H, H.42 will be amended to clarify this clause. 

199 L L.14(b) Organization L-18 In order to provide a "detailed staffing plan" that adequately 

addresses all of the topics described in L.14(b), please allow an 

additional 5 pages for Factor 2 - Key Personnel and Organization.

DOE will not increase the Page Count for this factor. 
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200

L L.13 Technical Approach L-16

The Technical Approach page count is restricted to 25 pages.  

Accordindg to your instructions,we are to describe our approach and 

capabilities, follow Section L instructions and comply with Section C 

PWS and Section H, Clauses H.4 to H.10.  We are required to discuss 

five areas of transition, xx areas of the PWS for Project Management, 

xx areas of PWS for ESH&Q, xx areas of the PWS for Safeguards and 

Security, xx areas of the PWS for Cyber Security, Computing, and IT 

and 7 pages of H clauses.

Question:  Since this PWS encompasses 39 pages and 10 pages of H 

clauses to address our approach and be compliant the page count is 

too restrictive.  Would the DOE consider adding 5 additional pages to 

be responsive and comply with all instructions and requirments?

DOE will not increase the Page Count for this factor. 

201

L L.14
Key Personnel and 

Organization
L-16

Key Personnel and Organization: The requirement states that the 

section is limited to 5 pages, exclusive of resumes and letters of 

commitment. The instructions require the Offeror to describe our 

approach to seven areas that encompass rationale for key personnel 

requirements, our team, provide a detailed staffing approach that 

shows our ability to obtain, retain, and maintain adequate numbers, 

an organizational breakdown structure by PWS, benefits to using a 

teaming structure, approach to variability in workloads and surges, 

and our understanding and approach to interfacing with other site 

contractors, service providers, and site wide programs providing 

integrated safety management and an effective safety culture.

Question: Since some of the requirements involve use of 11x17’s due 

to the detail required and size of organization as well as address all 

seven areas required, will the DOE expand the page count by an 

additional 3 pages to be compliant with the requirements? 

DOE will not increase the Page Count for this factor. 

202

L L.15(h)
Attachment L-5, Past 

Performance L-3 Form
L-18

The instructions indicate we can amend the format as long as the 

exact information, font, size, and page limitations are followed. There 

is a lot of instructional information in the form that takes up an 

incredible amount of space we do not have. Most instructions are in 

parenthesis but some are just stated what DOE wants to see like 

section 20 and 21. 

Question 1: Can we remove the instructional data and keep the 

primary areas, worded exactly the same?

Question 2: The L-3 form is in 11-point Times New Roman. We assume 

we follow this type size for this form and not the general instructions 

of using Times New Roman 12 point for the proposal. Is this a correct 

assumption?

Question 1: See "Note" in Attachment L-3, Page L-37 

for instructions. Question 2: The contractor must 

follow the instructions in L.10 (f) (4). 
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203  H H.5 Employee Compensation: 

Pay and Benefits

H-7 In the referenced section H.5 it is stated that the contractor shall 

provide equivalent base pay and benefit package(s) to all incumbent 

employees by labor category as compared to what is provided by the 

incumbent contractor SSI. Will the DOE supply the current pay and 

benefit package data for each labor category by employee to ensure 

accurate proposal pricing?

A list of benefits for grandfathered salaried 

employees will be posted in the library.  Benefits for 

represented employees are detailed in the applicable 

collective bargaining agreement which is included in 

the RFP.  Clause H.5 will be amended to clarify this 

language.

204  H H.5(A)(1)(a) Employee Compensation:  

Pay 

H-7 Contractor shall provide equipavlent base pay to all Incumbent 

employees as compared to pay provided by SSI for a at least the first 

year of the term of the Contract.  Will the government supply 

information on current pay provided by title/position for incumbent 

personnel?

Clause H.5 will be amended to clarify this language.

205  H H.5(A)(1)(b) Employee Compensation:  

Benefits

H-7 Contractor shall provide a total package of benefits to Incumben 

Employees comparable to that provided by the Incumbent Contractor.  

Will the government supply information of the current benefits?

A list of benefits for grandfathered salaried 

employees will be posted in the library.  Benefits for 

represented employees are detailed in the applicable 

collective bargaining agreement which is included in 

the RFP.  

206 H H.5 Compensation and 

Benefits

H-6 Are there any site-required non-standard benefits that need to be 

provided to non-union or non-grandfather incumbents? Benefits provided must be consistent with applicable 

law or collective bargaining agreement.  

207 H H.5 Compensation and 

Benefits

H-6 Is there a site-required vacation allowance by years served for non-

union incumbent employees? Vacation benefits must be consistent with applicable 

law or collective bargaining agreement.

208 H H.5 Compensation and 

Benefits

H-6 Are there site-required medical & dental plans that are required to be 

provided to the incumbent workforce?

A list of benefits for grandfathered salaried 

employees will be posted in the library.  Benefits for 

represented employees are detailed in the applicable 

collective bargaining agreement which is included in 

the RFP.  

209 H H.5 Compensation and 

Benefits

H-6 Does the Paducah site have specific adders that offerors should use 

when pricing labor/fringe (i.e. absences adder, continuity of service 

adder or continuity of pension adder)? No

210 H A(1)(a) EMPLOYEE 

COMPENSATION: PAY 

AND BENEFITS

H-7 The RFP states: "Pay.  The Contractor shall provide equivalent base 

pay to all Incumbent Employees as compared to pay provided by SSI 

for at least the first year of the term of the Contract."  Please provide 

a list of current positions and salaries of incumbent personnel in order 

that the contractor can meet this requirement and include the 

appropriate information in our proposal. Additionally, providing this 

information would mitigate any competitive advantage that the 

incumbent would have in this area.

Clause H.5 will be amended to clarify this language.

211 J Attachment J-68 SCA Wages The solicitation provides wage determination 2015-4691 Revision 6 

dated 10 January 2018.  Will the Government update this to Revision 

12 from December 2019?

An updated wage determination will be provided.  
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